THEFAYETTE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEAL S metonAugust 27, 2001 at 7:00 P.M.
inthe Fayette County Adminidirative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Public Meeting Room, Firgt
Floor, Fayetteville, Georgia

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bill Beckwith, Chairman
David Bartosh, Vice-Chairman
Tom Mahon
Larry Blanks
Ron Mabra

STAFF PRESENT: Kathy Zetler, Director of Zoning/Zoning Adminigtrator
Bill McNadly, County Attorney
Deores Harrison, Zoning Technician

STAFF ABSENT: Robyn S. Wilson, ZBA Secretary/Zoning Coordinator

Welcome and Call to Order:

Chairman Beckwith cdled the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. The Members of the Board and the Staff
were introduced. The operating procedures of the hearing were then explained.

* k k k k k k k k%

1. Consderation of the Minutes of meeting held July 23, 2001.

Tom Mahon made the motion to approve the Minutes as circulated. Ron Mabra seconded the motion.
The motion passed 4-0-1 with David Bartosh aostaining from the vote due to being absent at the July
Public Hearing.

* k k k k k k k k%

2. Consderation of Petition No. A-508R-01. H.D. Thames, Jr. and Carolene Thames,
Owners, and Ben Skipper of Powertel-Preferred Sites, Agent, request a 1.37 mile
Variance to reduce the minimum separation distance between tower facilities from a
minimum of 2.00 milesto aminimum of 0.63 miles; request a 160 foot Varianceto reduce
the sideyard setback from a minimum of 200 feet to a minimum of 40 feet: and request
a 15 foot Variance to reduce the front yard setback from a minimum of 200 feet to a
minimum of 185 feet to congtruct a 180 foot M onopole Telecommunications Tower .

Attorney Scott Taylor of Arnold , Holt, and Gregory Law Firm representing Powertel on behaf of
petitioners, BenSkipper, Agent,and H.D. and Carolene Thames, Owners stated that Powertel appreciated
the Board rehearing the petition. He explained that Powertel was awirdess communication company in
Georgia and was currently building out its telecommunication infrastructure in the southeast, including
Fayette County. He commented that Powertel attempted to co-locate whenever possible, in fact, seven
(7) out of the eleven (11) Powertel locations in Fayette County had been co-locations. He advised that
therewere dill some coverage problems incertain areas that required the construction of new fadilities He
confirmed that one (1) areahad been identified as the area d ong McDonough Road between Fayetteville
and Loveoy.

Attorney Taylor stated that Powertel’ s plans called for construction of a 180 foot monopole tower witha
50 foot by 50 foot |ease area, and an access easement from McDonough Road on the Thames property
which is zoned A-R and surrounded on three (3) sides by A-R property.

Attorney Taylor pointed out that the tower request required three (3) variances. He advised that the
Fayette County ordinancerequired atower separationdistance of two (2) miles and there was an existing
tower 0.63 miles away that was fully loaded and co-location was not possible on that tower.



Page 2
August 27, 2001

He also addressed the side yard variance from 200 feet to 40 feet and a front yard setback from 200 feet
to 185 feet. He noted that Powertel was trying to place the tower between a barn and a four (4) foot
diameter oak tree on the property to better screenthe tower facility. He stated that without the variances
the tower would have to be located in the middle of ahay field where it would be very vishle.

Attorney Taylor presented maps which indicated the coverage area and the need for Powertel to locatein
the McDonough Road area to provide adequate coverage. He aso presented photographs of the site to
show the openness of the area, and the proposed location of the tower. He presented photographs of the
existing nearby tower where they could not co-locate due to that tower not having the structurd capability
to support another antenna.

Attorney Taylor pointed out that the proposed tower would be a monopole type tower that would
accommodate Powertel’ s antenna and three (3) others. He added that they were aware of the County’s
concern to screen the tower facility and were willing to do whatever the County recommends. He
confirmed that they had received no opposition to the tower and respectfully requested approval of the
variances.

Chairman Beckwithasked if there was anyone to speak infavor of the tower. With no response, he asked
if there was anyone to speak in opposition. Hearing none, he closed the floor from public comments.

Larry Blanks asked Chairman Beckwith if the petition would require threg(3) separate motions.

Chairman Beckwithreplied that the petitionwould require three (3) separate motions since there are three
(3) variance requests.

Larry Blanks made the motionto approve the tower separation from 2.0 milesto 0.63 miles. RonMabra
seconded the mation.

Chairman Beckwith asked for any discusson.
Tom Mahon asked if there was aletter in the file from the other tower owner denying the co-location.
Attorney Taylor advised that he believed there is aletter on record in thefile.

David Bartoshsaid he hasrecently read about telecommunications antenna being located inchurchsteeples
and onexiging power polesinother parts of the country, yet no one had gpproached the County with any
of these options. He added he had heard of other technologies in areas such as Richmond, Virginia that
had been very successful by placing boxes on utility poles gpproximately two (2) feet tal and one (1) foot
wide with about atwo (2) foot antenna which were redly not noticeable. He commented that it seemed
tp him that tower companies should try some of theseideasto find the proper dternative to present, rather
than just congtructing more towersin the area

Attorney Taylor responded that he could address some of thoseissues and that Ben Skipper could address
some of the more technica issues aswell. He commented that there are some different technologies out
there, caled stedth towers that are often shorter in resdentid areas or semi-resdential areas and
camouflaged to look like a pine tree or something similar, but the result is a 180 foot tree in the middle of
afield which does not look natural.

Mr. Bartosh stated that is the reason he did not mention the pine trees.

Ben Skipper responded that the aternative of a church steeple houses a 65 foot antenna and typicaly
covers a very smdl area, and that was an issue where they are changing from coverage to capacity
objectives. He dated that was typicd in Atlanta because they have many of these type antennas close
together but don’t have the capacity to handle the volume demand. He went on to say that Georgia Power
and Coweta Fayette EMC have denied the use of their equipment for any attachment for



Page 3
August 27, 2001

antennas or any of thar ground for equipment housing. He added that option was pursued prior to
submitta of the gpplication.

Mr. Mahon asked why Powertd is only dlowing four (4) users on this tower.

Mr. Skipper replied that the tower is being structuradly built to accommodate four (4) userswhichisin
compliance with the Fayette County Tower Ordinance.

Mr. Mahon asked if the proposed tower could be constructed to accommodate more users since the
County is trying to reduce the number of towers being constructed. He said that Powertel needed to try
to accommodate more and avoid thisissue again in the near future.

Mr. Skipper advised the proposed tower would have the ability to accommodate morethanfour (4) users.

Mr. Bartosh stated that the Z.B.A. had heard this before, but thentower companies come back sayingthe
place they need to place their antenna on the tower is unacceptable.

Chairman Beckwith asked if the proposed tower was mesting the ordinance for height and number of co-
locators alowed.

Attorney Skipper advised that the proposed tower did meet these requirements and that they had tried to
say within the guidelines of the Fayette County Ordinance by keeping the tower at 180 feet, monopole
design, and with aminimum of four (4) cariers.

Ron Mabra asked if this was the only property in the area that would hold the tower facility to
accommodate the coverage area needed.

Mr. Skipper responded this was the only areathey could locate to keep within the required 1,000 foot
distancerequirement froman off-steresidence. He added that it would be difficult to meet thisrequirement
with any other parcel inthisarea

Mr. Bartosh advised that he understood about the past problems with utilizng the Georgia Power
substations but asked if they had ever heard of any of the other technologies he had mentioned earlier. He
went on to say that he was having a hard time understanding why the Z.B.A. was continualy approached
for additiond towers when it seemed that other aternatives might be available.

Attorney Taylor responded that they pursue dl dternatives available before they consider to congtruct a
new tower and assured Mr. Bartosh that none were available in this case.

ChairmanBeckwithremarked that before he cdled for a vote he wanted to clarify something. He advised
that we, as a County, under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 could not deny the location of atower
based onan ordinance requirement which essentidly restricted a telecommunications company frombeing
competitive in an area.

Attorney Bill McNally advised that the company had attempted to co-locate on a tower that isowned by
the County and is at maximum capacity. He further advised if the County did not allow Powertd to
congtruct atower in this location then how could they compete with the other companiesin the area.

Mr. Mahon asked again about why they are only building a tower to accommodate four (4) carriers.
Attorney McNally pointed out that the County wanted the proposed 180 foot tower built to the highest

specifications so that it would be able to accommodate as many users asa 180 foot monopole tower could
sructuraly accommodate.



Page 4
August 27, 2001

Mr Bartosh asked if legdly the Z.B.A. was out of compliance if they denied the request.

Attorney McNally responded that Powertel had been trying to co-locate on towerswhichwould limit the
number of new towersinthe County. He advised that the County had the choice of locating many shorter
towers or fewer high towers. He pointed out that the B.C.C. had passed alaw which sort of bridged the
gap, however we could only limit wheretowers could locatewithinreason.  He confirmed that the County
aso had to consder the Telecommunications Act which instructs tower companies to make their services
avalabletothecitizens. He pointed out that therewasagreat ded of latitude that goes betweenthese two
(2) laws and the County was trying to be far to the tower companies while at the same time limiting the
number of new towers sites in the County.

Mr. Bartosh asked if there were other aternatives out there or were they being arbitrary withthese tower
locations. He stated that he learned tonight from what Chairman Beckwith said that denid of these towers
was not in compliance with FCC Laws. He added that this newsto him and that he was a little puzzled
asfar as the competition part of that law goes.

Attorney McNaly said he did not believe he stated anything other about the FCC regulations.
Mr. Bartosh said he was referring to the Telecommunications Act not the FCC.

Mr. Mahon asked if Mr. Skipper was willing to build a tower to accommodate the maximum number of
users under the structura guiddines.

Mr. Skipper advised they planned to build the tower to accommodate the maximum number of users under
the structura guidelines..

Larry Blanks advised he would like to amend the motionto add a condition of gpprova that the tower be
built to accommodate the maximum number of users that the 180 foot tower could structuraly hold. Ron
Mabra seconded the amended motion.

Chairman Beckwith asked if there was any further discusson. Hearing none, hecdledfor the vote. The
motion was unanimoudy approved 5-0.

Chairman Beckwith asked for a motion on the second variance to reduce the side yard setback from a
minimum of 200 feet to aminimum of 40 feet.

Tom Mahon sad he wanted some darificationfromAttorney Taylor on the layout of the property and the
location of the tower. He asked if the variance was not granted, where would the tower be constructed

on the property.

Mr. Skipper advised that they tried to work the barn and the large oak tree together with the landscaping
around the compound to shield the tower facility as much as possible and not have to locate in the middle
of afied.

Chairman Beckwith asked for amation.

Tom Mahon made the motion to gpprove the Sde yard setback fromaminmum of 200 feet to aminimum
40 feet. Ron Mabra seconded the motion.

Mr. Mahon sad that he had driven by this fidd for 30 years and he believed that the proposed tower
location was the best place on the subject property for reduced vishility of the tower.

Mr. Bartosh commented that he did not have a problem with this variance because the property is fenced
and there is another field right next to the property.

Mr. Mabrasaid that since they had no objections to the location of the tower from neighbors then he fdt
the side yard variance was appropriate.



Page 5

August 27, 2001

Mr. Blanks added that the adjoining property to the west was part of the Thames farm.
Chairman Beckwith asked if there were any other comments.

The motion was gpproved 4-1 with David Bartosh voting in opposition.

Chairman Beckwith addressed the third variance for afront yard setback from aminimum of 200 feet to
aminimum of 185 feet.

Tom Mahon made a motion to deny the third variance. Ron Mabra seconded the motion.
Attorney Taylor advised that Powertdl would withdraw the third variance request.
Mr. Blanks asked about the buffer to the back of the property.

Attorney Taylor advised that the 15 foot differencewould not affect the buffer, but it did abut the Thames
property.

Chairman Beckwith cdled for the vote for the third variance. The motion to deny the third variance
carried 5-0.

* k k k k k k k k%

3. Consider ation of Petition No. A-513-01, Charles and Rita Middleton. Owner Agents,
request a 29.28foot Variance to reduce a proposedside yard setback from a minimum of
50 feet to a minimum of 20.72 feet to allow an existing pool cabana to remain. This
propertyislocated in Land Lots 3 and 30 of the 5" District. fronts on Harp Road. and is
zoned A-R.

Charles Middleton, Owner requested a 29.28 foot variance to reduce the sde yard setback from a
minmumof 50 feet to aminimum of 20.72 feet. He explained that when he built his pool cabana in 1985
he checked to make sure that he had left enough of a side setback to be able to it his property inthe
futureincase one (1) of his sons wanted to build ahouse later. He stated that at that time he was told that
he only needed 25 feet of road frontage and a 50 foot side setback and therewas no problem. Herecently
decided to lit the lot and sl off some property and found out that the frontage had changed in 1992 from
25 feet to 100 feet, and now he did not have the required side yard setback of 50 feet from the newly
proposed property line, so he requested the variance.

Chairman Beckwith asked if there was anyone to speek in favor of the petition. Hearing none, he asked
if there was anyone to speak in opposition to the petition. Hearing none and with no rebutta, he closed
the floor from public comment.

Tom Mahon made a motion to deny the petition. David Bartosh seconded the motion.

Mr. Mahonasked if thiswould restrict Mr. Middleton from sdlling the property and wanted to make sure
that there was a hardship.

Chairman Beckwith stated from what he understood the house and pool cabana were huilt before 1992
when the road frontage requirement for each lot changed from a minimum of 25 feet t0100 feet. Hesad
that Mr. Middleton checked at the time to make sure he was in compliance, but the requirements had
changed since then making his pool cabanatoo close to the property line whenhe later tried to subdivide

the property.

Larry Blanks stated he agreed that whenthe ordinance changed he would have to move the building when
it was there before the change and he wasn't aware of the change. He said he fdt sure that had Mr.
Middleton known the requirement would change that he would have put the pool cabana in a different
location.



Page 6

August 27, 2001

Mr. Mahon asked when the pool cabanawas built.

Mr. Middleton advised that the pool cabanawas built in 1985.

Chairman Beckwith noted that according to hisreport the ordinance changed to require 100 feet in 1992.
David Bartosh asked if this was the only possible access to the property.

Mr. Middleton advised thet it was and his house sat right in the middle as indicated on his plat.

Mr. Blanks remarked that if Mr. Middleton had built the pool cabana after the Zoning Ordinance was
changed and thencame in asking for a variance he may have a problem withthe variance but snce he built
the pool cabana and then the ordinance changed this problem was created by the ordinance change and
not by something Mr. Middleton had done.

Chairman Beckwith concurred with Mr. Blanks.

Mr. Bartosh asked if this was a single homeowner who would build on the proposed lot.

Mr. Middletonreplied that he hoped so. He added that the property used to be utilized by the Boy Scouts
for camping but now heis retired and no longer needed al this property.

Chairman Beckwith asked if there were any further comments. Hearing none, he caled for the vote.
The motion to deny failed 0-5.

Chairman Beckwith cdled for another motion.

Larry Blanks made the motionto approve the petition. Ron Mabraseconded the motion. Themotionwas
unanimoudy approved 5-0.

Chairman Beckwith asked if there was any further business.
Kathy Zetler advised that one (1) variance request had been submitted for the September Public Hearing.
There being no further business, Larry Blanks made the motion to adjourn the meeting. Ron Mabra
seconded the motion. The motion unanimoudy passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:00 P.M.
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
OF

FAYETTE COUNTY

Respectfully submitted by:

BILL BECKWITH
CHAIRMAN

DELORESHARRISON
ZONING TECHNICIAN





